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& Vision

BORHEBEMEIERE - Bk WEATRENEEE X -
To improve the quality of life for our community through continuous
enhancement of our electrical and mechanical engineering services.

ffi iy Mission

&F Customer

REBENTIREAR  URREFNFEE -

Providing quality engineering solutions to satisfy our customers’
needs.

BT staff

BY Y EBMNE THE - WHERTENTIERE -

Developing a competent workforce and maintaining a harmonious
environment.

&8P Organisation

ERERRERMRENE - WIRHEERS -

Keeping pace with technology development and process improvement
for service enhancement.

{&% Values

B {5 Integrity
BIRIGHIE - ERFRPERIRT -

We uphold honesty and integrity to embrace an ethical culture.

H & Bk Service Excellence
HPRELZ 25 « B8R - ARARSENEEL RS

We provide safe, reliable, efficient, cost-effective and quality services.

RR® Caring
BMEEET TPAMEAR - WERRIR °

We care for our staff, customers, community and the environment.

HUEHZX Customer Focus

RMEEPHZREFE  BAIFELBN  BRERIIENR - UK
HEPHEEMSHT

We focus on the needs of our customers and provide engineering
solutions in a proactive and responsible manner to win their trust and
support.

#&iz Commitment
BT —8 55F&E

We do what we promise.
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We are pleased to report that the
Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund had a year of steady
performance in 2014/15. This report
looks at the highlights of our work
during the year and shares some of
the initiatives we will adopt to further
enhance quality of life for the Hong
Kong community.

BRI K FE#HL

Mr Chan Fan, Frank, JP
BIRZEESBKE

General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical

Services Trading Fund
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The year 2014/15 was the second year of our Trading Services' five-
year plan to “create public value for community betterment through
partnership with our clients”. Our five strategies are now underway. The
three key indicators of the performance of the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Trading Fund, namely financial return, customer satisfaction and
staff satisfaction, are also on target.

HIGH CUSTOMER SATISFACTION, MODEST ROR

Our clients may be aware of our commitment to slim our return on revenue
(ROR) in recent years. This daring aspiration is based upon the belief that
every dollar we save for our client on E&M services is one dollar more for it
to use to serve the community. Accordingly, the ROR in 2014/15 was 5.3%
on total revenue of HK$5,492 million, consistent with our approach to
operate with sustainable profit without compromising the overall quality
of service.

We are happy to report that EMSTF scored a record high Customer
Satisfaction Index of 6.22 out of 8 in the 2014 Customer Opinion Survey.
The good rating proves that our five strategies are showing initial good
results.

After rising to a record high of 6.6 out of 10 in 2005, our Staff Satisfaction
Index has levelled off during the past decade, scoring 6.4 in the 2014
Staff Satisfaction Survey. As people are our first priority at EMSD, so it is
important that we continue to raise the level of staff satisfaction. Such
efforts not only will benefit staff directly, but they can also have a wider
positive impact on business as happy employees make happy customers.
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We are aware that a number of changes to the overtime management
system, which took effect in July 2015, might have caused concern from
frontline staff. We wish to reiterate that despite the flexibility given us
to operate a trading fund, it is the Government’s view that civil service
policies must be adhered to by all civil servants with no exception for
EMSTF. We appeal to all staff for their understanding. In fact, we cherish
the trust and strong relationship between staff and management built
up in nearly two decades since EMSTF came into being in 1996, and will
continue to focus on serving the community as our prime objective.

We will put further effort into the five strategies under our five-year plan,
while also working to enhance customer and staff satisfaction. To promote
the concept of “service value”, more work still needs to be done so that
staff members can more clearly define their roles in EMSTF's overall value
chain.

PUBLIC VALUE AND SERVICE VALUE

As mentioned in this column last year, the concept of creating “public
value” has made a strong impression on staff and permeated our EMSD
work culture. The concept puts our focus on contributing to the quality of
life and well-being of people in Hong Kong through innovative work and
best engineering practice, with every staff member understanding the true
meaning of service. Readers will find many examples of people-oriented
measures we took to resolve engineering challenges for the community in
the ensuing chapters.

During the year, we also began promoting the concept of “service value”
to encourage each division, sub-division, unit and even individual staff
members to define exactly what value or benefit to the public they aim
to create via their daily work. As simple as it sounds, the process actually
involves considerable thought, particularly for those support staff who are
not directly involved in engineering work. We are making progress this
year in articulating the “service value” of different areas and levels of the
department.
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A NEW LOOK AT LEADERSHIP

It is important that EMSD's leaders at different levels are able to guide and
help their staff perform and grow. However, it is not always easy to realise
that leadership is primarily about serving others.

To lead is a humbling experience, and that a good leader does not expect to
be served but to serve. Hopefully this concept will open up new horizons to
raise the quality of supervision and leadership in our organisation. Indeed,
the latest Staff Satisfaction Survey presented many good suggestions for
supervisors to excel in leadership and communication skills.

VOTE OF THANKS

This message would not be complete without a big thank you to our
staff, clients, the trades and other stakeholders in Hong Kong for their
support and cooperation. Our appreciation also goes to policy bureaux
and other departments for supporting our work. We must also thank the
media, lawmakers and the public for their ongoing scrutiny, which is a
driving force for improvement for us. We are confident that from this solid
foundation, further progress is in sight.

Chan Fan, Frank
General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
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The Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
delivered steady performance in 2014/15. In the
second year of our five-year strategic plan to achieve
our corporate goal, EMSTF met all its financial targets
while working further in key operational areas,
including customer and staff satisfaction.

RENATEHL
Mr Tai Tak-him, JP

HWE TIEEEIE R/ 2ERE
Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Return on revenue (ROR) in 2014/15 was 5.3% (2013/14: 5.3%), with
total revenue of HK$5,492 million (2013/14: HK$5,020 million). The
revenue increase is mainly attributed to increased scale of services and
the new venues we are now servicing, plus inflation, though its impact is
largely offset by increased expenditure, particularly rising contractor cost.
The ROR is same as that of the previous year. We will maintain the slim-
profit model in coming years so that clients may save more to serve the
community better.

WETREERESW|E EMSTF Report 08
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Since adopting the new corporate goal of “creating public value for
community betterment through partnership with our clients” in 2012/13,
all of us at EMSTF have been aligning our efforts and priorities with this
clear focus. Readers will find highlights of our work in the following
chapters. Overall, we are happy to report that our efforts are in the right
direction with the solid foundation of a record-high overall score of 6.22
out of 8 on the Customer Satisfaction Index, per the 2014 Customer
Opinion Survey.

SURVEY CONFIRMS VALUE-FOR-MONEY
SERVICES

The 2014 customer survey reported that a majority of clients regarded
EMSTF as their preferred E&M service provider with competitive services
that deliver value for money. Of all respondents, 75% considered that
EMSTF was their “most preferred E&M service provider”, which was
18% higher than the number in the 2012 survey. Respondents chose
“reliability”, followed by “technical competency” and “service quality”,
as the key factors driving them to continue to choose EMSTF's services.
Price was not our clients’ top consideration. Overall, survey respondents
gave EMSTF a Service Competitiveness Index rating of 6.19, as compared
to 5.87 in 2012. These figures are the best proof of our continuous
improvements over the years and of the value we create for clients.

The release of the Director of Audit’s Report in April 2014 revealed several
areas for EMSTF to improve, including the overtime issue for staff and
concerns about our pricing strategy. To address the EMSTF pricing issue
raised in the report, we commissioned an independent study by Deloitte
Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited in 2014. The study found that EMSTF's
current cost-plus pricing strategy was “to ensure that the price of its E&M
services is reasonable and consistent over time”, and it meant that in
principle “its prices should be in broad alignment with, and comparable
to, market transaction prices”.

HAPPY STAFF, HAPPY CUSTOMERS

Customers and staff are very important links in our value chain to serve
the community. Our belief is that if we give staff a good environment
for them to excel, develop their potential and motivate them to do well,
they will perform better. Clients will therefore be happier with the quality
service received and be more appreciative and this will, in turn, enhance
the self-esteem of staff members and motivate them to do even better. It
is true that happy staff is essential to make customers happy. Our latest
Staff Satisfaction Survey saw us achieve the Staff Satisfaction Index of 6.4
on a scale of 10. In fact, this Staff Satisfaction Index has held steady within
a range of about 6.3 to 6.6 for the past few years, indicating a consistent
level of staff satisfaction but certainly there is room for improvement to
meet our goals.
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2014/15 HIGHLIGHTS

Much effort went into analysing and developing means that meet
client needs during the year. Internally, we focused on clarifying and
communicating EMSTF's strategies at every level of the organisation to
deepen staff understanding and alignment.

2014/15 also saw the launch of initiatives that aim to tackle some long-
term issues, one of which is the need to keep customers better informed
of work progress, as reflected in several Customer Opinion Surveys. We
believe the ultimate solution is to overhaul our current job management
system and introduce major process improvements so that job assignment
and its progress tracing will become more transparent and efficient. Our
aim is to roll out the new system in 2017/18 alongside a totally revamped
Customer Service Centre operating on an e-platform. This will enable us
to give clients pro-active, timely updates of work progress and help us to
handle client enquiries more effectively. Moreover, we have continued to
introduce more advanced technologies to optimise plant performance for
our clients.

Another initiative in 2014/15 was developing a staff competency matrix
which aimed to enhance the professionalism of our staff by identifying their
needs for better planning of staff training and development. For instance,
we enhanced the content of our Technician Trainee Programme so that
it becomes more skill-based. The new programme will be implemented
for the new cohort in September 2015. Also, we enhanced our contract
management capability, and one of the step-up measures we took was to
have clear divisional guidelines to manage and supervise contract.

CUSTOMER AND STAFF SATISFACTION: FUTURE
TARGETS SET

During the year we also took the unusual step to set future targets
for customer and staff satisfaction. The aim is to achieve a Customer
Satisfaction Index of 6.3 in 2017/18 and 6.5 in 2019/20 (from the current
6.22), and a Staff Satisfaction Index of 6.8 in 2016/17 and 7 in 2018/19
(from today's 6.4). As the saying goes, “nothing measured, nothing
gained”. A clear and measurable target will keep people focused and
commit them to act. Accordingly, each Strategic Business Unit now goes
through an annual strategic planning process so that there is Divisional
ownership of improvement initiatives tailored for its clients and colleagues.
We have also reviewed and refined EMSTF's Key Performance Indicators to
align them with the latest Total Quality Management model and achieve
more effective performance measurement.
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GREEN OPERATIONS AS KEY FROM 2015/16
ONWARDS

Looking ahead, helping clients sustain green operations will be important
in response to the Environment Bureau’s requirement for all government
buildings to reduce electricity consumption by 5% by 2020 from a 2014
baseline. As the upgrading of equipment to more energy efficient models
has largely been completed in recent years, we should now focus on
helping clients find new ways to optimise the energy performance of their
systems. In this regard, we shall carry out optimisation of plant operation
via, for example, monitoring and capturing operation data for further
analysis, and share our knowledge of whole-system energy modelling.

Similarly, we must continue to raise the bar in service excellence. We used
to be content with “guaranteed done”, but when our focus shifted from
fault rectification to fault prevention we progressed to “guaranteed no
breakdowns”. Then we aimed higher with “guaranteed satisfied”. Our
latest goal is “guaranteed smart”, meaning we help clients manage their
E&M assets in an intelligent way to optimise system performance. There
are still gaps between our current performance and the higher levels of
“guaranteed smart” excellence, and our team is striving to close them.

To meet the challenge of the “0-1-1" envelope saving programme together
with our clients, we will continue to operate with the slim-profit model
and deliver quality service to our clients through various productivity
improvement measures and adopting advanced technologies. These
include areas of information technology, various monitoring and mobile
technologies and knowledge management.

APPRECIATION

In closing, | would like to share our heart-felt appreciation for the support
we receive from clients and for the outstanding service our staff provide.
Current issues, such as tight manpower supply and the need to do more
with less, are common challenges for us all, yet we believe our strong
partnership with clients puts us in a good position to overcome our
obstacles together to better serve the community.

Our appreciation also goes to the Executive Board for its guidance and
advice. We also thank our contractors and consultants and the trades for
their support. We look forward to another fruitful year in 2015/16.

Tai Tak-him
Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD
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People are our top priority. For us at the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund, this means that
we care for our clients, our staff and our community. We always keep in mind that the very reason for
everything we do is to give people safe and pleasant experiences that contribute to their quality of life.
We call this “creating public value”.

Our 3 000-plus staff team provides professional E&M services to over 100 client departments and public
bodies all year round. Indeed, we provide such a wide variety of services that we touch every aspect of
your life — perhaps in ways that you have probably never imagined.

To show you how we have, by supporting our clients and equipping our staff, served the people of Hong
Kong over the past year, our colleagues will walk you through the key areas of our work.

VE” ZERE: ["RBERBBTSERE - | HIRSEARGUBRNIXT  MARDEFHRE
TiREEASEFNTHEER  BERMIENTES  NEUERTR - ERMANKE
BRAERBE |

It is often said that a picture is worth a thousand words. | am delighted to
have this opportunity to share some photos and stories that illustrate the
work of EMSTF over the past year. | will explain why our work is important
and how it benefits everyone in Hong Kong. Shall we begin?

PAANIRIT

PUTTING PEOPLE
FIRST

PBs REPPIE AP — (L TR - SRt EERM BEE] -
E2014/15FBIAISEES RESBUMRREAEEEER -

Tommy, one of our engineers working at EMSD, will be your guide as
we look at how EMSTF has supported clients in 2014/15 to raise the
quality of life for everyone in our community.
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BoRhe: Bk
GIVING US A SAFE AND
PLEASANT JOURNEY

RMHAATERE QUSRS  SXBEEEBALAH  HARBEBNGIK
EEESHTBEEENSTERRMAXE  BRSTREZZ2NFENKRE - BR
EEB R -

Used by millions of people each and every day, the city’s public transport
network is well-known for its efficiency, and is truly the lifeblood of Hong Kong.
We support many different aspects of the transport infrastructure with a key
objective in mind — to let the public enjoy their safe and pleasant journey while
arriving at the destinations on time.
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Kong International Airport, the gateway to Hong Kong for most visitors. In
addition to providing operation and maintenance (O&M) services for major
airport E&M systems last year, we also commenced key projects to improve
electrical power supply of the Airfield Ground Lighting (AGL) system in
anticipation of the ever increasing air traffic. Together with the Airport
Authority (AA), we obtained ISO 55001 certificate for the AGL as part of
our asset management initiative. This is the first joint certification in Hong
Kong between two organisations. EMSTF is delighted to be partnered with
the AA team in improving the experience for airport users.

Also related was our joint certification on ISO 55001 for the Air Traffic
Control Building of Civil Aviation Department (CAD) Headquarters with
CAD, as well as our introduction of the integrated Building Management
System at the Government Flying Services Headquarters for better
monitoring of facilities.
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We obtained the ISO 55001 asset management certification for the AGL
jointly with Airport Authority in 2014/15. It is also the first joint ISO 55001
certification in Hong Kong.
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TUNNELS, MONITORING AND SURVEILLANCE

Leaving the Airport, most visitors commute to their destinations through
public transport will see much of the city’s transport infrastructure along
the way. Hong Kong's various road tunnels, the cross harbour tunnels
and bridges operate smoothly round the clock, supported by state-of-art
monitoring and surveillance systems and E&M systems that we design,
install and maintain for the Transport Department. Examples are the traffic
control and surveillance system at Shing Mun Tunnels, newly replaced in
2014/15, and the tunnel lighting system at Aberdeen Tunnel, being replaced
in progress. Visitors may also notice the many Public Transport Interchanges
(PTIs) that serve Hong Kong's major residential and commercial complexes.
One of our tasks last year was to reconfigure the air intake and exhaust
systems at ten PTIs to improve ventilation for users, with satisfactory air
quality improvement results.

HARMONY IN THE HARBOUR

Visitors who travel along waterfront will be captivated by the beauty and
busyness of Hong Kong's bustling waterway, Victoria Harbour, and the fact
that so many vessels navigate so smoothly and efficiently in one of the busiest
harbours in the world. This is made possible by the Marine Department’s Vessel
Traffic Services (VTS) System. During 2014/15, we continued to work on the
major multi-year project to replace and upgrade the VTS system to raise its
capabilities in providing vessel traffic information, traffic organisation and
navigational assistance services to all VTS-participating vessels in Hong Kong
waters. Our work on the system design was in good progress and installation
of the VTS system will be commenced in the third quarter of 2015, with
anticipated project completion in 2016/17.

F201415FE - HMIRRE (£) REAL () 2HERRER @ 7
BT MR RS E T2 - #m RA AT ERERE

To better the environment for citizens queuing up at terminals in
Public Transport Interchanges (PTI), works to improve ventilation
systems at the Tin Hau PTI (left) and Diamond Hill PTI (right) were
completed in 2014/15.
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BRRELE BRRG

BB IR 800fEE A #3238/
We developed a new Geographic Information System integrated with an asset management system to
support the maintenance of traffic lights for the Transport Department. Beginning service in November
2014, it monitors traffic lights live at 1 800 road junctions.
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R Giving Us a Safe and Pleasant Journey

BEERRGMIBEMTS - ZEENR2014F11 AIRARE -

WHEN TRAFFIC LIGHTS MEET GIS

Visitors using road transport will certainly notice the steady flow of heavy
road traffic, well directed by traffic lights, as they arrive downtown. As the
service provider responsible for installing and maintaining all traffic lights in
Hong Kong for the Transport Department, we took a major step in 2014/15
to integrate the city’s traffic light monitoring system with the Geographic
Information System (GIS) platform. With this new capability, we can have a
consolidated geographical view of faulty traffic lights at their exact locations
in real time. This allows for prompt rectification of problems.

Similar remote monitoring devices have also been installed on pumping
systems in about 250 pedestrian and vehicle subways to monitor water
levels and alert our team to prevent or mitigate flooding. Indeed, GIS-
integrated, real-time monitoring and fault rectification is the way forward
for our transport maintenance strategy for clients.

A HUMAN TOUCH TO WALKWAYS

Related to public transport is the city’s focus on barrier-free access
under the Government’s Universal Accessibility Programme. Under the
programme, more than 300 new lifts are now being installed at various
walkways, which will double the number of footbridge lifts and escalators
we maintain. We provide technical support and advisory services to
client departments during design and construction stages, as well as
the subsequent maintenance of the new systems. We are ensuring via
these services that walkways fitted with lifts give users a truly barrier-free
experience.
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GOVERNMENT FLEET GOES GREEN

Visitors may also have a chance to notice our active government fleet
with special licence plates comprising general purposes vehicles, police
vehicles, ambulances, mobile libraries, street washing vehicles and refuse
collection vehicles, to name just a few. Our team helps the Government
procure, modify and maintain this fleet of around 5 800 vehicles, of which
more than 200 are electric vehicles (EVs).

To help promote the use of EVs, we have been assisting client departments
in acquiring more EVs with built-in high capacity charger, including a latest
model that can be fully recharged within four hours by connecting to a
32A wall box, and installing such charging facilities in government car
parks. With sustainability in mind, we are assisting client departments to
phase out Euro 3 vehicles in the government fleet and replace them by
lower-emission Euro 5 or the latest Euro 6 models.

REEBFNRRBE HEREZREXTEBREREBH
W RPRBISEESEEME T EHBRERN - WABITE
Bal ABRS T EBHEERFN RN B ERG

To support Government’s green policies to improve roadside
air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions, we have
installed EV charging facilities at government car parks and
introduced to the government fleet the latest EV models with
higher-capacity charging systems.

fEa - WIRHESRERY - RHRHEREEHSERERRE -
We installed and maintain a stair lift for the Highways
Department at a footbridge connecting to the MTR
Kowloon Bay Station, providing barrier-free access for

wheelchair users.
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AR EREIPY mMEZE L)
HELPING MAKE OUR CITY SAFE
AND SECURE

BEMALEBBENEFHMREMA-ENEERY - BOMEERE
ER ABUTR  REFTRZBHEFRE -

We maintain the quality of our services for clients of
disciplinary forces, who will in turn maintain a safe and
stable living environment for every citizen and visitor.
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Joyce (r@/vt) s an electronics engineer in c/m/je of

prejects for the Correctional Sevvices Department

(CSD) which will hety their officers to operate
correctional inwstitwtions smoothly and
masntain law and ovder in general.
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Our construction of Ilve fire simulators continued for Phase Two of the Fire Services Department’s Tseung Kwan O Fire Services
Training School, to help enhance the quality of fire training. (Right) Ship Fire Simulator design adopting Building Information

Modelling.
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FROM SECURITY SYSTEMS TO FIRE SERVICES
INSTALLATIONS

Our colleagues completed several major projects for our clients of
disciplinary forces in 2014/15, including the Electric Locks Security System
(ELSS) at the Lo Wu Correctional Institution for CSD and the Palletised
Cargo Inspection System at the Cathay Pacific Cargo Terminal for the
Customs and Excise Department (C&ED). The new border fence protection
system for the Hong Kong Police Force (HKPF) at the Ta Kwu Ling sections
was also completed, gearing up border security.

We were happy to see that CSD was so satisfied with the ELSS and it has
further asked us to extend the system to the Tai Lam Centre for Women,
the design of which was completed during the year. Another new task
for CSD is to replace and expand the existing Closed-Circuit Television
(CCTV) system in Stanley Prison on a major scale to step up its surveillance
capability. Besides, the Palletised Cargo Inspection System marks multiple
breakthroughs in technology application and helps C&ED inspect cargo
faster and more effectively.

Our colleagues continue to provide E&M support to the Fire Services
Department (FSD) as it builds specialised live fire training simulators at its
Tseung Kwan O training school. Phase Two of the project, which includes
the construction of full-size mock-ups of an aircraft, a ship and a train,
is well underway. These facilities will provide a more realistic setting for
drills, helping our fire fighters perform better in future rescue operations
to make our community safer.

19



LAA & %E Putting People First
W BhAC 25T TR % 2% 0 Helping Make Our City Safe and Secure

BPIRE S FENE HIMEEW A BB R R RELERERY - RSB
IR REE o

We help the Customs and Excise Department to maintain the Automatic Vehicle
Clearance Support System at Lok Ma Chau Control Point, to ensure smooth and
efficient clearance operation.

i BE AY X ¢ Bk Bk THE BORDER X-RAY CHALLENGE

PERBIBABABIEY - METERBEREE -  Growing border traffic is increasing cross-border operations and

tHIERTBEEERRGRAKRE - BFRERM  lengthening wait times for cross-border truck inspection. To tackle the

B BEAEEMRAMETEXERBAZRSL - F issue, C&ED has asked us to upgrade the existing fixed X-ray inspection

IRIE BN ERR E N R A MR FIRERE © system. We are now setting design and procurement specifications in

LASE DB g AR E SRR EEWE - order to increase inspection throughput and improve image resolution of
the new system.

ERELZAREIREEES - ABWKRABE  The Highways Department has entrusted EMSTF to provide technical
7‘%137% B RERITZIBRS - 8% —48  services for the Hongkong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge Hong Kong Boundary

FIRREEXNHERMBRERLS - §EEEEDE  Crossing Facilities. The first new Gantry Type X-ray Vehicle Inspection
BIERERLECR  EMEBOFEEHSEE  System will be installed at the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities and
INBFBORIRHE o FTEFEEMBAKARERME  will likely be introduced to other border points later. It will greatly improve
BER  QBMAIEEREG  ©EP - ¥REFR  inspection speed, image quality and the overall efficiency of the customs
HEHERITE © clearance to benefit our clients, the logistics industry and the community.

?HF?EEEQ/%/@F@MEM&%E’J%% SERERETIE - (B) BEAMBEKAETERE - ﬁTEPHEB&;EiiX’E&ﬁuD ERAERSS -
Our team is responsible for the maintenance of E&M equipment for the Customs and Excise Department at the alrport (Right) Staff wipes
the surface of suspected luggage, and puts the wiping cloth to the Explosives and Narcotics Trace Detector to detect any contraband drugs.
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TECHNOLOGY, COMMUNICATION AND ENERGY
EFFICIENCY

The past year also saw us complete a new electronic Human Resources
Management System for the Civil Aid Service to upgrade its staff work
time record and roster system, and helped it convert its analogue mobile
communication system to the Unified Digital Communications Platform for
the interoperability with the users from other government departments.

We have also been helping our colleagues improve their ability to keep
clients informed on progress of project works. We provide frontline
staff with smartphones for online communication and are developing a
dedicated encrypted instant messaging system called “Project Link” that is
to be launched in early 2015/16.

Like other government bureaux and departments, our clients of disciplinary
forces are also required by the Environment Bureau to reduce energy
consumption by 5% in the next five years. Hence, in addition to enhancing
our contract management of energy audits, we have also started reviewing
the overall lifecycle benefits of certain energy-saving technologies, in
particular in lighting and air-conditioning, so that we can help clients save
more energy in the long run.

O&M SERVICES

In addition to our project management, we also continue to provide
O&M services for the disciplinary forces, covering a wide range of E&M,
electronic and building services systems. During 2014/15, we stepped up
efforts in asset management and preventative maintenance, extended our
integrated Building Management System to more facilities and venues for
clients of disciplinary forces, and improved the performance of contractors
by more rigorous implementation of our Performance Monitoring System
for Maintenance Contracts.

We trust that these initiatives will allow us to maintain the quality of our
services for clients of disciplinary forces, who will in turn maintain a safe
and stable living environment for every citizen and visitor.
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MBGER MBS m KA

IMPROVING OUR EXPERIENCE
WITH MUNICIPAL FACILITIES

LEEESHESEXRRIZZNFTATFBMXETRIERE - hMB OB EFRASETBUSHRMATSE

ERERY  URRHFNERE  BTREEESE - Eftk -

AtEMSTF, the team is always looking for ways to improve municipal facilities for client departments. They
help clients ensure that everyone enjoys reliable, uninterrupted services and a pleasant environment
at every municipal facility, thereby making everyone’s life more convenient and enjoyable.
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Tommy, like every citizen of/—fonﬁ Kong, mfm from the city’s
mgztano{f}nﬂ municipal facilities. He also W how hard EMSTE
works to ;wrfeot them.

RERETFEERNTREFER
RETREX—SHEGDEY - MBETEK
%%~§@%ﬁ%iﬂ%!ﬁ%%%&@%ﬁ

CEFF o AHEE - WHDBR - AR
*ﬁ%m R w ARNHRERIERE D
KRG h— S

Rt - FAFIE2014/15F EF %A S EFH R - 0
BANERTRRERIEEANGEEETERE
i PInsEMBERUERRE - B8 - =
o FrEREMBBRE RS ARBREENTT
) o

HWE TR EELS S EMSTF Report

IBMS DELIVERS A BETTER EXPERIENCE

To those who start the day with shopping at a municipal market, a well-lit
environment and reliable escalators contribute to a pleasant experience.
Similarly, reliable electricity supply as well as dependable security and
escalator systems are vital to stall operators, especially those who sell fresh

That is why we began to enhance our integrated Building Management
System (iBMS) with new technologies in 2014/15. Our iBMS helps us
continuously monitor the operating status of municipal facilities. For
, it uses CCTVs to monitor security, power distribution, air-
conditioning and lift and escalator systems for timely actions.
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RAETFEERRER TEBBMRRERBE ©  Besides helping us quickly detect failures, iBMS helps us remote adjusting
R MEEAREZSANEEL S - FIMFAR  of operational parameters such as adjusting temperature setpoints to
TRERGARERTE - RREEENIRE - £188  maintain comfort environment for air-conditioning systems. For detecting
HERH  ZRSIEHRERTBLIAEEEFEBA  failures, the iIBMS will alert us of alarms and faults via smartphones, and
A% RMOFAIBEBFRERAS FRFZEME  we can immediately acquire related data and real time images from our
RERIGN - SLEHBAKEATHRMOWEL  smartphones. The new measures significantly boost our efficiency in repair
BHE RO THREPEEHAREROTE - work to minimise service interruption to the public. They are particularly
LEEAEIEREFISH - ZAIRMEMBEME  valuable at unattended venues, where they allow continuously remote
BEERRE  EFREE - RR=F - HMELE  monitoring. The iBMS will be extended to other major municipal venues
AEFEERLS  EEREEMMUIINEMEE  over the coming three years.
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To make air-conditioning supply more reliable at municipal facilities, we apply iBMS to monitor
the operation status of air-conditioning system at the Aberdeen Municipal Services Building.

which boosts efficiency and minimises service interruptions.

The system enables us to receive alarms or fault reports via staff’s mobile phones in real time, i
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Staff checking the air-conditioning system at Aberdeen Municipal
Services Building immediately after receiving alarms or fault reports.
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TR a5 i 48 25 548 Improving Our Experience with Municipal Facilities

BfRMHFEEN — WA NERY - BEEFER ANZSN/EEROSHEE MEBAIRIEREERETIE -
We provide professional one-stop cremation services, including O&M services for a chapel and the four re-provisioned
cremators for the client at the Cape Collinson Crematorium.

ik IR 55 9 K 2R PR 35

RPN ERBHTERARERBHN+HE
B - mRNER —EBHBNRS - RMERKE0R
ERGEEIEERE - BRBHATRNSIENE
{EBRTS - RFMARRLR T HEHSERRR
2 EHRERRTHEMOAERERL &
60 B 18 - RIBHEEN X NERE - £
RENMEEMRERIR - BXEFEE ZHNIR
SOETEBE -

20145 E—ATIEEE - EREBFEEAN
EGETEE R ERERENAEEENF A
18 I E#ER2015/16FEEAE —PEER © BT
2R EBENATHMEE - AKINE T AMER
HHAE - ENMEERE THRBEROKME @ B8
FAPIRT AR S 2= R BRI - ANl A AE W4
M RRTESINIEREEEEERRM24/)N
B M IEELE - BRMBEE LS TIES MR
X MBI ERBEBRAFAZL ARG
BRI N FEEH o

HE T2 L EE G WS EMSTF Report

DIGNIFIED CREMATION SERVICE

Our cremation service is of great importance to the deceased and their
loved ones. It is also a dignified service area where we must ensure reliable
and smooth cremation service delivery by taking extra care on the O&M
of the cremation system. Also, our system needs to satisfy rising service
demand and keep pace with international environmental standards. Our
aim is to provide professional one-stop cremation services, including
providing E&M support to a chapel for families to hold memorial services
in a peaceful environment.

A major initiative in 2014/15 was completing the takeover of four re-
provisioned cremators under the Cape Collinson Crematorium Phase One
programme. With Phase Two following in 2015/16, six new cremators
will be added to boost the city’s cremation capacity significantly. This will
shorten waiting time and give us the extra cremator capacity we need to
explore new technologies, such as the use of bio-diesel, as well as new
concepts like 24-hour cremator operation which has proved effective in
Germany and elsewhere. These improvements will enhance our efficiency,
which in turn will ensure a smooth experience for the families of the
deceased during a difficult time in their lives.
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A tailor-made Kai Tak Cruise Terminal model demonstrating
the operation of Seaport Passenger Boarding Bridge (bottom
left) to facilitate training to our technicians.
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Staff repairing E&M equipment at Centre Street Market in Sai Ying
Pun, one of the many services the EMSTF team provides round the
clock to make municipal facilities reliable and convenient to users.
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CONSOLIDATE FOR CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT

While achieving these improvements over the last year, our municipal
services team also actively sought opportunities to consolidate related
tasks and do more with fewer resources. Some staff were redeployed, and
some attended venues became unattended venues through better use of
technology. The team also embarked on an ISO 55001 asset management
certification programme, starting in February 2015 with air-conditioning
systems in all markets. Certification work will be extended to all market
escalators in 2015/16, then all market E&M facilities in 2016/17.

Our new initiatives called for better teamwork, hence two frontline
teambuilding workshops and 16 experience-sharing sessions were held
during the year to promote communication and collaboration among staff.

It is a privilege for us to be able to enjoy our city’s seamless municipal
services. At the same time, we appreciate our colleagues who work behind
the scenes to help our clients continuously improve their services for all of
us in Hong Kong.
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SAFEGUARDING OUR HEALTH
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We are confident that our clients can trust our comprehensive
one-stop-shop O&M services for medical facilities and equipment,
providing peace of mind for management and frontline staff.
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WL (left) is one of our experienced senior electronios inspectors
at a major hospital under the Hospital Awthority (HA). As
with all EMSTE staff in health engineering sevvices, WL is
dedicated to practice the service value of supporting clients’
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Consistent with our people-oriented principle, we have launched the new “client visit” programme in hospitals to collect feedback from end-
users such as clinical staff for quality improvement and strengthen communication between end-users and EMSTF.
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CLIENT VISITS POPULAR WITH CLINICAL STAFF

Let me begin with a new initiative we introduced in 2014: a new “client
visit” programme that we piloted at Princess Margaret Hospital and Tseung
Kwan O Hospital to hear the voice from the clinical frontline.

| believe you can understand how important it is to closely contact with
frontline clinical staff. To continue providing quality services that satisfy
client needs, we need to understand clinical staff about their requirements
and needs in their daily clinical operations.

The “client visit” pilot programme is a regular programme developed to
keep closer contacts with the clients and listen to their voice on top of
our routine work communication. We recruited a new customer service
colleague, Ms Rebecca Feng, to visit hospital wards with our frontline
colleagues serving the hospital. During the visits, Ms Feng and her visiting
team received a lot of feedback and suggestions from the clients.

This ambassadorial approach puts a human face on our service and
provides a new channel of communication for clinical staff to raise O&M
issues and have their concerns addressed in a more effective and quicker
manner. We are happy to see that the pilot programme helped us earn
good marks in the 2014 Customer Opinion Survey! We are extending
the programme to other major HA hospitals and venues of our clients of
health service in 2015/16.

PROACTIVE IN VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Hospital accreditation is a useful means by healthcare providers to sustain
and improve the quality for their healthcare services. The accreditation is
also a process that can set the relevant standards and enhance patient
safety. We were delighted to support Princess Margaret Hospital and Tung
Wah Eastern Hospital in their successful bids to the accreditation from
the Australian Council on Healthcare Standards last year. We have also
obtained a joint certificate of the asset management system ISO 55001
with HA for the maintenance of its renal equipment.
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Our in-house Certified Biomedical Engineering Technician course
is designed for our staff to consolidate their knowledge in medical
electronic equipment, so as to raise the quality of service to public

healthcare institutions.
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Oil-free chiller training at Prince of Wales Hospital for our technical
. staff aims to enhance their O&M knowledge and technological

capabilities, thereby passing on our core expertise.

STRONG CLIENT PARTNERSHIPS CONTINUE

We are confident that our clients can trust our comprehensive one-stop-
shop O&M services for medical facilities and equipment, providing peace
of mind for management and frontline staff. We are delighted to have
successfully renewed the five-year Service Level Agreement with the
Department of Health in 2014/15, and to have won all our four O&M
tender bidding from public hospitals. This is an encouraging indication
of our service competitiveness in the market and the clients’ trust on our
quality and performance, but we must also continue to work hard to
exceed their ever-rising expectations.

BUILD STAFF CAPACITY VIA TRAINING AND
TECHNOLOGY

We aim to strengthen our workforce through training and technology in
order to provide better and more efficient services. To keep pace with fast-
developing biomedical technology, an in-house designed-and-delivered
Certified Biomedical Engineering Technician course was launched to upkeep
our staff proficiency in prevailing technology in biomedical engineering, as
well as skills for supporting clients in a clinical environment. During the
year, we are working towards registration of the programme under the
Hong Kong Qualifications Register, and exploring ways to open up the
programme for the local biomedical engineering trade to benefit society
at large.

To help our colleagues work smarter, we equip our frontline staff with tablet
computers for plant room meter-reading to facilitate them to immediately
upload data to servers at EMSD Headquarters. Through the use of remote
monitoring mobile technology, we are strengthening our data capturing
and processing capability with a view to develop a comprehensive client-
oriented, interactive customer service platform in future.
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Our team came up with an innovative solution for preventive
maintenance of the Pneumatic Tube Transport System in North
Lantau Hospital, which checks the internal condition of the
pipelines to ensure efficient transportation of drugs, documents
and specimens without disrupting the normal operation of the
system.

PROACTIVE FOR BETTER SERVICE QUALITY

We take a proactive approach to ensure that clients’ engineering systems
are in good working condition, from fault rectification to preventive
maintenance and monitoring. An example in 2014/15 was an innovative
solution to monitor the interior condition of the Pneumatic Tube Transport
System (PTTS) in hospital.

PTTS is an automated, efficient materials transport system used in
hospitals, but its closed transmission pipelines design poses difficulties for
our maintenance team to have preventive checking and fault-finding to its
interior. Riding on our full range of electrical, mechanical, air-conditioning,
building services, electronics and biomedical expertise, our team devised a
solution that enables video-recorded, in-line assessment of PTTS without
impeding its operation. The client is appreciative and the method is
applicable to other hospital PTTSs.

WAY FORWARD WITH GREENER, MORE
RELIABLE FACILITIES

Going forward, we shall strive to apply technologies, continuously improve
our maintenance services for E&M facilities and equipment, and enhance
monitoring of plant and equipment condition so that we can minimise
impact to clients when there is incident or equipment failure.

We shall also work with clients to identify long-term green operation
initiatives and application of energy efficient technologies so as to
contribute in protecting the environment and saving energy.
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SHOWCASING OUR INTELLIGENT AND GREEN
GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS
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Best practice and new technology are creating opportunities for us to make government
buildings and facilities smarter and greener to benefit clients and the public.
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Mr Lin (right) is one of our experienced assistant building
services inspectors overseeing the O&M of E&M facilities at
major govermment Wzﬁ: His Job is to ensure that clients
provide a mfe, W@/ and wwforfaﬂe environment ﬁr their
staff and members off/w public, and thus helping citizens enjoy
wninterrupted services in govermment ém}lah}nﬁr and venues.
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HEERESERERNE WHERE IT MEETS GREEN FEATURES

BRFAEEESHEMEEME REER - BIFKX  In Hong Kong, our government buildings are a showcase for combining
BRE TRINENTRREZN - BkEEHRZ  information technology and green features to improve the quality of our
AEBRERFNEE - UBMAEEFTERER  built environment. Take our integrated Building Management System
HRO - REBFRENBIEEREERA - £ (iBMS) for example. Now being extended to many government office
HERRRBASEEERRDBMELZLLHEE  buldings and some law courts, it links to a data network and mobile
# ADBEMERETNEERTFHMERM o communication system to help us monitor E&M facilities round the clock.
BTHEEFEERAZE  —BH#EREELE  Using iBMS enables our frontline staff to be immediately alerted to faults
WE - ZEREEBFIREFNEEAAZETE  via mobile phone, minimising the equipment downtime. The end result is
HEE - BB PR EREHRRE - MK more reliable services for the public.
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The BIM-AM pilot project at EMSD Headquarters, launched in
aims to enhance operation and maintenance efficiency
of its facilities and improve asset management of the building.

2014,
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EMSD took the initiative to add more
green features to its headquarters
to set a good environment-friendly
example to the community. The new
“green wall” at the lobby foyer is one
of the examples.
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Popular in the construction industry, Building Information Modelling
(BIM) uses intelligent digital models to improve building design and
documentation. A pilot scheme held at EMSD Headquarters with
integration of asset management (AM) system last year. The integration
of AM with BIM can effectively interface with the existing Building
Management System and some newly designed and installed electronic
systems, such as Radio Frequency Identification system, CCTV system, and
Real-Time Location System, on the mobile device. It showed that BIM-
AM could also help us improve O&M workflow, repair faults and handle
incidents faster and enhance asset management. We are now sharing our
experience to help clients adopt BIM in their buildings.

The people in Hong Kong are increasingly aware that the Government is very
active in adding green features to public facilities. In this regard, the EMSD
Headquarters takes the lead. Though the building has been used for some
time, it became greener and more energy efficient last year through various
transformations. These include the installation of a new 5.45m-long-by-
5.6m-high “green wall”, or vertical greening system, in the lobby foyer, and
the renovation of key conference rooms and the library to make better use of
natural light. In February 2015, the headquarters building successfully passed
the ISO 50001 audit and got the energy management system accreditation.
It was one of the first few government buildings obtaining the ISO 50001
accreditation, which also recognised our effort in energy management.

As a high-quality green building, EMSD Headquarters received provisional
BEAM Plus Platinum Rating for Existing Building certification from the
Hong Kong Green Building Council in 2014/15, with the final assessment
due to take place later in 2015. In the meantime, we are already helping
other government buildings prepare for BEAM Plus certification so that
more clients can enjoy cost savings and provide a better environment for
staff and the public.

We also helped clients install energy-efficiency measures in their buildings,
including oil-free chillers, next-generation LED lighting installations, and
rainwater harvesting systems for the watering of plants.
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Key conference rooms in EMSD Headquarters have
been renovated to feature new glass curtain walls that
" direct more natural light inside.
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We provide O&M services for the new Trade and Industry Tower at

Kai Tak to ensure smooth operation of its security system and E&M
facilities for the safety and comfort of users.

NEW BUILDINGS BRING NEW POSSIBILITIES

A new building is always exciting. The Trade and Industry Tower at Kai
Tak is the latest for which we will be providing O&M services, once the
testing and commissioning of E&M facilities is complete. As a showcase
government building, the new tower comes with state-of-the-art energy-
saving and green features such as a heat recovery system, a lift power
regeneration system, renewable energy installations, vertical greening on
the building facade and an automatic refuse collection system that we
helped design and install. The tower will also be running on the District
Cooling System in Kai Tak at a later stage upon the completion of testing
and commissioning of E&M facilities, which will further boost its energy
saving capacity. The E&M facilities of the Kowloon City Government Office
Building were also handed over to us for O&M last year, and the building
has been serving the local community well.

Giving a historic building a new lease on life, the Old Supreme Court
Building reopens as the new Court of Final Appeal. We installed the
electronic and security systems employing the latest technologies and
resilient configuration, and take over the building’s E&M facilities. This will
be particularly challenging as the building is bound by the Antiquities and
Monuments Ordinance, which restricts how E&M facilities can be installed
and maintained, including a stringent loading limit and no tolerance
on heritage impact on the building. Even so, we are happy to serve this
historic building as it continues to stand for the rule of law in Hong Kong.
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Since the building of the new Court of
Final Appeal is over 100 years old, we had
to install the new electronic systems with
~ resilient configuration to minimise the
impact on its cultural heritage.

GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS WITH SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Also challenging is our work on a pilot of the new BEAM Neighbourhood
assessment scheme at EMSD Headquarters. The new tool is a means of
promoting sustainable development on a community scale. In practical
terms, it asks building developers and owners to look 500 metres beyond
their building boundary to better plan supporting facilities such as bus
stops and gardens. Talking to different parties in the neighbourhood to
gauge their needs at the design stage is important to the process.

We continue to help clients conduct energy audits at their venues to
identify where additional energy savings can be made. We also have
plans to certify whole-building E&M facilities to ISO 50001 standard and
to help clients save more energy by further improving operations and
housekeeping practices.

Best practice and new technology are creating opportunities for us to
make government buildings and facilities smarter and greener to benefit
clients and the public. We look forward to serving them better.

33



i ummum

‘ 4 b
f B) ‘o = =
N - ‘ )
5 X
w ’ \ NS ",_.—-—-“
: : : . ‘ ‘ 2 | ;
| 7 “ 4 28 —
g J\ \ '
| E \\ . - e
» . : :
T EHIEHE = g ﬂ’, »
- 4 2! 7 - PRT— .
1 » A by
> & ki I I3
: ¥ 5 g ™ ‘
- & v G (Z we P & T v
: - ~ 3 « S




EM—AUARE  XBHIBERF EIRUEAR > AOAMBMRKRE - HTEIRETIR
BEES [BREZFNAMEE  ABAREENETR] NEXER  BRMEHTHEEF
8 2014155 ERRREFANE_F > YMEREZER  RETRMNCERBETHRE
B ARUREEESRMEBEAMRABESR  WARBINEFEE  REERAR -
KX EEERNA

As always, people are our first priority and we continued to take good care of our
clients, our staff, as well as members of the public. Our five strategies to achieve
EMSTF's corporate goal of “creating public value for community betterment
through partnership with our clients” gained further progress in the second year
of implementation. The results also underscored the work of our various corporate
service and administrative teams supporting the strategic business units in addressing
our staff’s and our client’s needs, which in turn benefits the public. We are happy to
report the highlights in this chapter.
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A couple of the winning teams of the Best Improvement Projects and Best Occupational Health and Safety Enhancement
Projects Competitions sharing their improvement projects experiences with colleagues. These competitions are parts of the
proactive efforts by our staff to provide excellent service and solutions to clients.
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THE FIVE STRATEGIES MAKING PROGRESS

Deliver Excellent Service

The record high Customer Satisfaction Index of 6.22 out of 8 in 2014
Customer Opinion Survey has prompted us to keep up our improvements
for achieving higher target. In addition, we commissioned an independent
study by Deloitte Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited to review EMSTF’s pricing
mechanism. The study found that our prices should in principle comparable
to market transaction prices. We also made preparations to more than
double the coverage of our monthly telephone survey of customers, from
210 calls to 460 calls every month, to gather more feedback from clients
on EMSTF's maintenance services starting from 2015/16.

To further reduce response time to our clients, preparations were made
by our Information Services Centre (ISC) to alert the responsible officer
and senior management via mobile phone text messages as soon as ISC
receives client calls seeking repairing works progress updates. The feature
will be introduced in 2015/16, together with enhancements in the ISC
web-based fault reporting form for added convenience to our clients.

Furthermore, we tried every attempt to better serve our clients and
satisfy their needs. In 2014/15, we received nearly 100 submissions of
Best Improvement Projects and Best Occupational Health and Safety
Enhancement Projects from staff under the Quality, Environmental and
Productivity Promotion Programmes, demonstrating our effort to provide
excellent service and solutions to our clients. Also, outstanding services
from three of our staff were recognised by getting the Secretary for the
Civil Service's Commendation Award 2014-15.

We make smart use of new technology, good asset management and
effective contractor management to deliver excellent service to our clients.
As reported in previous chapters, the integrated Building Management
System, alongside smartphone apps used by frontline staff, has been
increasingly deployed in client venues for remote monitoring of E&M
systems, faster fault reporting and keeping clients better informed of work
progress.
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Secretary for the Civil Service’s Commen
Awards Presentati

After a successful development of the pilot scheme in integrating Building
Information Modelling (BIM) with asset management system at EMSD
Headquarters in 2014, we have been sharing our BIM experiences with
clients to help them adopt it in their buildings for better asset management
and for more efficient and cost-effective O&M services. As part of our asset
management initiative, we have obtained ISO 55001 joint certifications
with some of our clients for their buildings and critical assets, and we shall
continue to assist other clients in such work.

With a view to enhancing collaboration and contract management,
a feasibility study on whether EMSTF should adopt the New Engineering
Contract (NEC) forms for E&M contracts was conducted by our consultant.
We will try the NEC forms with some of the consultant’s recommendations
taking onboard. A series of NEC workshops has been held subsequently to
help colleagues acquire the requisite knowledge. Meanwhile, the Performance
Monitoring System for Maintenance Contract has been implemented in
EMSTF during the year to step up our contractor performance management.

Become a Trade Model

EMSTF's efforts to become a trade model include taking the lead in
building a platform to share best practices in operation and maintenance
with other E&M practitioners, maintain high standards of work safety, and
promote E&M trade to the community particularly the younger generation.
We also continued to lead the Hong Kong E&M Trade Promotion Working
Group comprising 19 related E&M organisations and which runs many
activities to promote the trade’s image. An E&M trade forum with the
Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited
had been established for liaising and exchanging views with the EMSTF
on major issues which might have long term impact to the development
of the E&M trade in Hong Kong. Together with the trade, we make our
community better.

B T R EMBEERMNE - AMREEZERNTIIRR -
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We have established a high level E&M trade forum to foster closer
communication with the trade, such as holding regular meetings
on aspects including safety, technology development and =
manpower, to facilitate the long-term development of the trade.
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Awardees of EMSD and their family members attended the
awards presentation of the Secretary for the Civil Service's

Commendation Award 2014 -15.
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To attract new blood to the trade, we and the Hong Kong E&M Trade
Promotion Working Group participated for the first time in the four-day
Education and Careers Expo held by the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council in February 2015. Our booth promoted “Engineering Graduate
Training Scheme”, “Technician Trainee Scheme” and “E&M Young
Ambassador Programme” to more than 10 000 visitors including students
and members of the public at the Expo. A “job shadow” day was also held
for secondary students at our headquarters for promoting the E&M trade’s
image to the young generation in Hong Kong.

In order to set a good example for the trade in providing a safe and healthy
working environment, we have issued new guidelines for specific E&M
work at height, and kicked off the permit-to-work system for ceiling void
works. Also, the Work Safety Technology Seminar in conjunction with the
Safety Equipment Exhibition were held to promote the best Occupational
Safety and Health practices in E&M works through the application of
technology.

Build Capacity and Caring Culture

Building staff capacity in both technical skills and soft skills is vital to
our ability to attain our corporate goal, and to the personal growth and
development of all staff. In doing so, we must also cultivate a caring
and supportive work environment so that people remain the focus of
everything we do.

During the year we also prepared the Technician Trainee Scheme with
many enhancements. We also updated our Training Handbook so that
the syllabus is more in tune with current business needs. Starting from
September 2015, we will provide a more systematic training system for
our trainees to equip themselves with core O&M skills of key E&M systems.
We aim to equip our technical staff to take EMSTF's service quality to a
new level. We also coached a team of technician trainees to participate in
the WorldSkills Hong Kong Competition 2014.
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As youngsters are the future pillars of society, we must continuously _
nurture the next generation of E&M practitioners. For example, a “job -'f“ =
shadow"” day was held for secondary students to give them an overview

of our daily work and attract them to the E&M trade.
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To attract youngsters to the E&M trade, we participated in the
“Education and Careers Expo 2015” held by the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council in February 2015 to show visitors the job
opportunities, career path and training programmes offered by EMSD.
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Our technician trainees excelled themselves in the WorldSkills Hong Kong
2014. The contest provided them with a platform to demonstrate their
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excellent vocational skills.

We collaborate with an NGO to set up a small coffee shop at
our headquarters lobby in early 2015. Funded by the Social
Welfare Department, this social enterprise provides more food
and beverage choices for our staff and visitors, and creates jobs
for the disadvantaged.
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In view of the value of virtual reality applications, we have been
collaborating with the Vocational Training Council to develop a Virtual
Reality and Augmented Reality Assisted Training Project, a training tool to
create simulated training environments for highly realistic but a safe and
controlled environment for trainees.

In 2014/15, we also laid the groundwork for setting up various Centres of
Excellence (CoEs) at major client venues in the coming year. These CoEs
for in-house O&M of major E&M systems aim to build up and sharpen in-
house expertise and become a trade model for other venues. They provide
an on-job training ground for frontline staff and trainees to sustain in-
house competency.

CoEs are supervised by dedicated professional staff and line management
while the CoEs’ day-to-day operations are manned by inspectorate staff.
CoEs not only serve as training hubs for EMSTF's technicians, but they also
serve as showcases of our core O&M capabilities and a benchmark for the
trade in due course. By building up staff competence, we provide quality
service to our clients.

Our caring culture also means caring for the community. In 2014/15,
we explored every opportunity to collaborate with non-governmental
organisations (NGOs) for enhancement of employing the disadvantaged and
physically disabled in the community. We worked to overcome the difficulties
in allowing social enterprises to operate in our premises. We are happy to
see the opening of “&O0ther Cafe” in our headquarters lobby in early 2015.

We have also engaged an NGO to provide clerical support to some of our
units as a pilot scheme, in order to support social enterprises and provide
more job opportunities for the disadvantaged. In view of the satisfactory
results of the pilot scheme, we plan to continue the scheme for another
two years. We are happy that EMSTF can help, even in a small way.

We value our staff and take pro-active measures to ensure their views are
heard. Numerous interactions were held in the year to facilitate exchange
of views between management and staff such as visits, workshops, forums,
teambuilding activities and experience sharing sessions.

Also worth noting was that we enhanced the Performance Incentive Scheme
for EMSTF staff to include two new incentive parameters of “productivity
enhancement” and “contributions to Government’s saving”. The change
would bring additional motivation to our colleagues to excel ourselves.
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The activity of “Farewell Ceremony for Former EMSD Headquarters” was held in January 2015
by our Staff Club to bring staff together to cherish the memory of the old days.
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Since end of 2013, we have been commissioning the Hong Kong Family
Welfare Society to provide counselling services to all EMSD staff. Workshops
on stress management and group crisis intervention by counsellors were
also held for the well-being of staff.

Furthermore, we organise regular social events such as the long and
meritorious service award presentation ceremony, staff funfair, and other
special events like “Farewell Ceremony for Former EMSD Headquarters”,
and “poon choi gathering for celebration of the tenth anniversary of
EMSD Headquarters Building at Kowloon Bay” to bring staff together and
foster a caring culture in EMSD.

With all these efforts and our established caring culture, EMSD joined
the “Caring Company Scheme” under the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in March 2015. This was a recognition of our achievements in
caring for the community, employees and the environment, and shows
that our work is in the right direction.

Enhance Knowledge Management

To enhance staff engineering knowledge for the benefit of clients and
foster a stronger learning and sharing culture among staff, we reviewed
our Knowledge Management (KM) Portal in 2014/15 and planned to
launch an enhanced portal in the coming year for better facilitating the
set-up of virtual knowledge sharing communities and personalised view of
KM contents. The new platform will better connect staff to our knowledge
base and make knowledge sharing more fun, user-friendly and interactive.
It will also encourage work collaboration among colleagues.

In 2014/15, we also examined the Knowledge Areas and tried to identify
room for improvement as well as expansion. We also reviewed the
EMSTF Policy Manual published in 2013 against the latest Total Quality
Management framework and revised its structure accordingly. The Policy
Manual helps staff better to understand the rationale of our various
policies for facilitating better service delivery.
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Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
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Mission

Knowledge management is ongoing and must evolve with time and
technology to make sure that we have a strong knowledge foundation on
which to build staff capacity and maintain our service excellence. We look
forward to further progress in this regard next year.

Sustain Green Operation

This strategy is also based on our “people first” principle, as green
operations ultimately benefit the mother nature and people. With regard
to our work to certify the EMSD Headquarters Building to the BEAM
Plus - Existing Buildings, the provisional certification for platinum rating
was awarded in December 2014 and final assessment is scheduled for
completion in 2015. We also got the award of ISO 50001 certification
on the Energy Management System of EMSD Headquarters Building in
February 2015. Both are milestones in our “green” journey to become
more environment-friendly.

“Green” procurement reference information is vital to ensure that all
materials and supplies we and our contractors use are environment-
friendly. Our colleagues have compiled a Departmental Green Products
List, using data from various tender and quotation results in 2014/15,
which has been uploaded to our Intranet for sharing.

There are other activities and initiatives within EMSTF to sustain green
operations which are too numerous to list here. These range from the daily
saving of paper and electricity at an individual level to macro projects such
as replacement of more energy-efficient chillers, not to mention frequent
“green” reminders of good housekeeping practices to conserve natural
resources in the office and workshop. These are all examples of how we
strive to achieve green operations.
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We are happy to be awarded the 2014/15 Caring

Organisation Logo by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service in March 2015, in recognition of
our continuous commitment to corporate social
responsibility.
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nagement work at EMSD Headquarters is
compliant with the requirements of ISO 50001 energy
management system. We shall make further efforts to
maximise energy efficiency to protect the environment.
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund set out on pages 44 to 64,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as the General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of
the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards.
Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund as at 31 March
2015, and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of
the Trading Funds Ordinance.

Audit Commission
26th Floor
Immigration Tower

LAU Sun-wo
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

7 Gloucester Road

29 September 2015 Wanchai, Hong Kong
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B Z2015F3H31HILFE  for the year ended 31 March 2015

(LB F Tl 3)F) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B s

Note 2015 2014
=E 32 Turnover (3) 5,491,718 5,019,969
BERLA Operating costs (4) (5,145,459) (4,702,662)
EFEF Profit from operations 346,259 317,307
H MU A Other income (5) 137,481 133,840
EEMNEHAEF Profit before notional profits tax 483,740 451,147
HEFEH Notional profits tax (6) (76,603) (70,971)
FEREA Profit for the year 407,137 380,176
Eh 2w Other comprehensive income - =
FEAZEKE Total comprehensive income for the year 407,137 380,176
BEEEERBRE Rate of return on fixed assets (7) 34.6% 31.7%
FA9E64B MM FE AL The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2015 3H31H as at 31 March 2015
(BB F Tl 3)F) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
st
Note 2015 2014
FERENEE Non-current assets
M - BB REEM Property, plant and equipment (8) 821,753 831,745
B EE Intangible assets (9) 5,621 11,206
SNEE ST Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 3,000,000 2,526,557
3,827,374 3,369,508
REEE Current assets
7E Inventories 71,443 72,101
INEFE B 175K Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 618,401 =
JFE U IR SR R TR IR 3K Debtors and prepayments (11) 49,972 28,099
JE Y B S A IR R Amounts due from related parties (22) 284,567 215,745
RITFRK Bank deposits 1,388,000 2,321,000
RE MIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 2,431 1,185
2,414,814 2,638,130
ik =R Current liabilities
P& Customers’ deposits (12) (762,089) (733,146)
FEAIIR R Creditors (719,124) (592,651)
FETREE A TR Amounts due to related parties (22) (162,580) (156,881)
EE @A EHE Provision for employee benefits (13) (61,813) (57,662)
RIEWA Deferred revenue (14) (610,944) (575,380)
BRNZEFE/H Notional profits tax payable (34,743) (26,764)
(2,351,293) (2,142,484)
REEETE Net current assets 63,521 495,646
BEERERBEE Total assets less current liabilities 3,890,895 3,865,154
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
IEREFL K Deferred tax (15) (11,161) (8,803)
& B @A BetE Provision for employee benefits (458,322) (461,900)
(469,483) (470,703)
EEFHE NET ASSETS 3,421,412 3,394,451
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

2015 3H31H as at 31 March 2015
(LB F Tl 3)F) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B s

Note 2015 2014
EXR R E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EEHSEARN Trading fund capital 16) 706,600 706,600
IREBEF| Retained earnings 17) 2,511,243 2,307,675
BEERR B Proposed dividend 18) 203,569 380,176

3,421,412 3,394,451

F49E64B M FE AL The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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CHAN Fan, Frank
General Manager,

Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund

29 September 2015

HETIREERSME EMSTF Report
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B Z2015F3H31HILFE  for the year ended 31 March 2015
(BB F Tl 3)F) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
FNLEER Balance at beginning of year 3,394,451 3,378,894
FEAIEKE Total comprehensive income for the year 407,137 380,176
FREMNEKE Dividend paid during the year (380,176) (364,619)
FHREER Balance at end of year 3,421,412 3,394,451
FA49Z 64 B MM EE AL The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Z2015F3H31HILFE  for the year ended 31 March 2015
(LB F Tl 3)F) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B s
Note 2015 2014
EEBEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BIERF Profit from operations 346,259 317,307
e R Depreciation and amortisation 33,550 29,764
HEME  RELEMBUE  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (361) (196)
FEWRD Decrease in inventories 658 1,635
VW'P%M&TEHWJE K H Decrease / (Increase) in debtors and
A (35n) prepayments 1,193 (919)
%HQE@@}\iﬁlﬁmﬁ'ﬂiM Increase in amounts due from related parties (68,822) (8,840)
REETSHEM/ CRD) Increase / (Decrease) in customers’ deposits 28,943 (81,835)
JFEAT IR SR BT IE 10 Increase in creditors 126,473 59,311
JE AT B A TR ER A9 BN Increase in amounts due to related parties 5,699 7,117
& B R AIEE R N Increase in provision for employee benefits 573 8,158
IEFEYA B IE 10 Increase in deferred revenue 35,564 29,715
ERZRFEFH Notional profits tax paid (66,266) (71,692)
REEEEENRSFHR Net cash from operating activities 443,463 289,525
REEENREERE Cash flows from investing activities
RE BB BB3ME A MIRTT  Decrease in bank deposits with original maturity over
FRE D three months 2,200,000 50,000
AN EL B 1T SRR 3E N Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (1,091,844) (120,312)
EEWE  [EXEMEAKL  Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible
BIVEE assets (17,973) (43,524)
HEME  REKRSIMATE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 361 196
B IF & Interest received 114,415 139,803
REREEENWERSFHR Net cash from investing activities 1,204,959 26,163
RMEEENEESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BT A Dividend paid (380,176) (364,619)
ARBEEENRESTE Net cash used in financing activities (380,176) (364,619)
REREFEEN Net increase / (decrease) in cash and
g/ CR2) FEE cash equivalents 1,268,246 (48,931)
ReRERBLSNENLEE  Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 122,185 171,116
HERERREMNELRLEE  Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (19) 1,390,431 122,185
FA9E 4B MM FE AL The notes on pages 49 to 64 form part of these financial statements.

MAEHEREN — D
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(Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)
GENERAL

The Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund (EMSTF) was established
on 1 August 1996 under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 26 June
1996 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
to provide comprehensive electrical, mechanical and electronic services, vehicle
services, and project and consultancy services to clients.

Government bureaux, departments and autonomous bodies have the freedom
to use the services of the EMSTF or to choose alternative service providers to
meet part or all of their electrical and mechanical service needs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), a collective term
which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the EMSTF is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial
statements is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application
of the EMSTF's accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
next year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Initial recognition

The EMSTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into
different categories at inception, depending on the purpose for
which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are loans and receivables and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at
fair value, which normally equals to the transaction prices, plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset or issue of the financial liability.

The EMSTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Categorisation

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and which the EMSTF has no intention of
trading. This category includes debtors, amounts due from
related parties, bank deposits, cash and bank balances and
placement with the Exchange Fund.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note
2.3.4).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the EMSTF estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

50



B RS R EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FEEFBE (8)

2.3.3

2.3.4

2322 HthemAaE

Hip S BAERAERNTE
TR AMED R ©

LSRR
EREREERDMRSRENS HE
ERE AEERMEEREBRID
RO ERECEEN %2
BEE ST HER

ERNEHNERRER - BUEKE
HIRY - Z e BB A REHER -

TREERE

B0 R R MOIR SR A0 IR T (B 7 R
i% ERAEHAE  UBEREE
BEBORERR - BERRERIRFE
FHEREERE BESUZEENIR
HEERERANEEMNEBFRT
X EERMARARRESRENHREZ
MM EE  A2ERERAER - 17
HgmEBERE - mZBERET

ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%i&%#%%
e - AZRESEeEREK
m§W@%

2.4 BHEAEH

2.41

2.4.2

RIE (BB ED) (F1128) BET
REEESYERKRMT  BEFBR
%ﬁﬁ&ﬂW@Mﬂ%i%%IF“
BESARBUR— KA N —FR
AREMEH (BBZMEH) &mﬁ
ERE (HBED)D) NREME -
REELBNEHRIHBERARR
NMIRFETR R EEM B ERNEE)

AR SRS AR 6 2 3 AR AR R AR IR
SHERAEEMHERERH B X
AHERTERENRR 0 YBERESF
JE e AR SR A0 (E AR ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the
financial asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any impairment evidence exists, a loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount of such
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive
income.

Notional profits taxs

51

The EMSTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap.112). However, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the Government) requires the EMSTF to
pay to the General Revenue an amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e.
notional profits tax) calculated on the basis of the provisions of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance. Notional profits tax expense for the year
comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the EMSTF on 1 August
1996 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value
contained in the Legislative Council Resolution for the setting up of the
EMSTF. Property, plant and equipment acquired since 1 August 1996 are
capitalised at their costs of acquisition.

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

- buildings; and
— plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles,
furniture and fixtures and other equipment.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

= Buildings 10 — 35 years
— Computer equipment 4 - 10 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 5 -7 years
— Other equipment 7 years
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The land on which the EMSTF’'s buildings are situated is regarded as a
non-depreciating asset.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programmes.
Expenditure on development of computer software programmes is
capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible and the EMSTF
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses (note 2.7).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives of 4 to 10 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify any indication of impairment. If there is an indication
of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Inventories

Inventories are materials to be consumed in the rendering of services.
They are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being
determined using the weighted average cost method. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs.

When inventories are consumed in the rendering of services, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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Employee benefits
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The employees of the EMSTF comprise civil servants and contract staff.
Salaries, staff gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued and
recognised as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions
and housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government, are charged
as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, the pension liabilities of the
EMSTF are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by the
Government. For other staff, contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue from contracts for provision of services at agreed service level
covering a specified period of time is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period concerned. For other service contracts, revenue is
recognised based on services performed during the reporting period as
a percentage of the total services covered by the contract.

Fees received but related to services to be performed in future
periods are recorded as deferred revenue.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the closing
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the EMSTF has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

The EMSTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the
EMSTF has entered into transactions with various related parties,
including government bureaux and departments, trading funds and
financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period.

There have been no changes to the accounting policies applied in
the financial statements for the years presented as a result of these
developments.

The EMSTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet effective for
the current accounting period (note 24).

iE24) o
3 Ex@. TURNOVER
2015 2014
HWEREFIIERE Electrical, mechanical and electronic services 4,837,861 4,369,603
B T2 Vehicle services 284,595 265,701
T2 KRB RS Project and consultancy services 348,999 363,958
Hh Others 20,263 20,707
pist ) 5,491,718 5,019,969
4 EEREF OPERATING COSTS
2015 2014
BTEH Staff costs 2,248,926 2,170,405
M Materials 441,600 434,729
AP & A Contractors cost 2,168,077 1,850,227
HekEEER Rental and management charges 29,624 26,261
—MEERITHAX General operating and administration expenses 222,736 190,389
e R E Depreciation and amortisation 33,550 29,764
EtEA Audit fees 946 887
FEE 5,145,459 4,702,662
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5 HftilgA OTHER INCOME
2015 2014
RITERBFBWA Interest income from bank deposits 18,993 20,766
HNE E S FRAF 2 WA Interest income from placement with the
Exchange Fund 118,488 113,074
W Total 137,481 133,840

6 B/J|FIFM

(REEEHEERATRHBENSHAT

NOTIONAL PROFITS TAX

(a) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive income

represents:
2015 2014
AHEBLR Current tax
PN IFE Sl Provision for notional profits tax for the year 74,245 68,968
EEBR Deferred tax
TRTEEENES Origination of temporary differences 2,358 2,003
ERFEH Notional profits tax 76,603 70,971

(D)RIBZ B S SR M B AR R E iR

(b) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable

N tax rates is as follows:

2015 2014
HEFEHAIAT Profit before notional profits tax 483,740 451,147
BREBNEHE16.5% Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%

(2014: 16.5%) FTat & H KB K (2014 : 16.5%) 79,817 74,439
— R MR TR One-off tax reduction (20) (10)
FERRTR A B T KA 2 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (3,194) (3,458)
FHBIEXH Notional tax expense 76,603 70,971

7 BEESEDOERF
ETEEDNRREUNE2EKE(TEIEFE K
AMFBZH) BRABEEEEFHFEMENE
NE BEFTEEDEYME  BiE - BVMREFRE
EoBHRETREEEESUNEINKRARR
ENEFETEERRET.8% (2014 : 7.8%) 1)
BiZ o
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RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income
(excluding interest income and interest expenses) divided by average net fixed
assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The EMSTF is expected to meet a target rate
of return on fixed assets of 7.8% per year (2014: 7.8%) as determined by the

Financial Secretary.
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8 ME - =WkaEH PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

TR HAR
B2EY BB BHEH EEHE Hithggm HBE
Furniture

Land and Computer Motor and Other

buildings  equipment vehicles fixtures equipment Total
R Cost
®2013F4 818 At 1 April 2013 950,100 81,154 37,605 52,500 44,316 1,165,675
N Additions - 14,165 2,837 23,605 2,385 42,992
B/ RE Disposals - (29,551) (2,054) (1,465) (7,375) (40,445)
M2014F3A31H At 31 March 2014 950,100 65,768 38,388 74,640 39,326 1,168,222
M2014F4 818 At 1 April 2014 950,100 65,768 38,388 74,640 39,326 1,168,222
o Additions - 8,032 5,696 2,184 2,061 17,973
L/ Disposals - - (2,821) - (2,655) (5,476)
MA2015%E3A31H At 31 March 2015 950,100 73,800 41,263 76,824 38,732 1,180,719
RitineE Accumulated depreciation
H2013F4H81H At 1 April 2013 184,600 67,713 33,089 44,095 23,436 352,933
FEBH Charge for the year 7,841 4,897 2,619 4,446 4,186 23,989
/R Written back on disposals = (29,551) (2,054) (1,465) (7,375) (40,445)
H2014F3H31H At 31 March 2014 192,441 43,059 33,654 47,076 20,247 336,477
RK2014F4 811 At 1 April 2014 192,441 43,059 33,654 47,076 20,247 336,477
FEEA Charge for the year 7,841 6,675 2,458 6,336 4,655 27,965
HE / SR Written back on disposals = = (2,821) = (2,655) (5,476)
A2015%3H31H At 31 March 2015 200,282 49,734 33,291 53,412 22,247 358,966
R E R E Net book value
A2015%3H31H At 31 March 2015 749,818 24,066 7,972 23,412 16,485 821,753
H2014F3A31H At 31 March 2014 757,659 22,709 4,734 27,564 19,079 831,745
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9 H|LEE INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EEBRAERR
RGBABEA
Computer software licences and
system development costs
2015 2014

o2 Cost
REH At beginning of year 48,224 47,692
il Additions - 532
REL At end of year 48,224 48,224
ZEt#E Accumulated amortisation
RE At beginning of year 37,018 31,243
FEBHA Charge for the year 5,585 5,775
REL At end of year 42,603 37,018
IR [ FHE Net book value
RE At end of year 5,621 11,206

10 HMEERER PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE FUND
INEESTFRERBIFEALI0EAT (2014 ¢ The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund comprised principal
2288 T) c MEBMERBEFARERAKIEIR  sums of HK$3,000 million (2014: HK$2,200 million), interest paid but not
BFIE3.184 18T (2014 : 3.26618%87L) K—=  yet withdrawn at the end of the reporting period of HK$318.4 million (2014:
FREAFIASMERTT (2014 : &) - K& FERAHN  HK$326.6 million) and a short-term sum of HK$300 million (2014: Nil). The
F (BFREET) - BHATERRAS c WEH  term of the placement is six years from the dates of placement, during which
R 22187 T K% 81 _/%EE’JZK%HQ’\E\JEAZOWEG the principal sums cannot be withdrawn. The two principal sums of HK$2,200
A %2020%12 A 5|8 million and HK$800 million will mature in June 2017 and December 2020

respectively.

SVEESHFHRABREFIABENETEE XSG  Interest is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is the
B ZRERBINEEZSREMBSBECFN T  average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund's Investment Portfolio
FEKRERR @ HIFHINEESESFAEMBE—  for the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund
BAFENFHFERR  MERELESE - TR Notes for the past year subject to a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the
730% ° 2015 EE B R BEF5.5% * 20145 higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 5.5% per annum for the year 2015
BE3.6% ° and 3.6% per annum for the year 2014.
ZEIBBTOEIIA - FR2015F4 %S —  The short-term sum of HK$300 million will be transferred to the account of
EEES (Eﬁ@/\i) WR| SR EEE R BV RIAR TR another trading fund, a related party, upon receipt of the same amount from
EZEEESWIRS - the trading fund in April 2015.
HRMERAERERA2BI2EARNEIR - HZ  For the year ended 31 March 2015, the balance of interest paid but not yet
201563 A31 HIEFEMEFAREMARRIA  withdrawn has been reclassified under current assets as the interest is realisable
B BEEMHEERBEEHEET ° within twelve months after the reporting period.
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11

12

13

14

M R % B TR A+ R R DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS

2015 2014
JE W 3R Debtors 169 1,702
FERTIR X Prepayments 426 86
HNE RS 7 RIEEFIE Accrued interest from placement with

the Exchange Fund 49,071 22,428

RITERERFIE Accrued interest from bank deposits 306 3,883
petcl Total 49,972 28,099
ERiI& CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS

2015 2014
WRAEA T WERIE] & Deposits received from related parties 762,089 733,100
HEME S WEAE] & Deposits received from other customers - 46
W Total 762,089 733,146
ERIEFIRGE PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

AR EREHLERAREEMREERORSES
FEBLRANEEORHENGEAFEE (BRH
££2.10) o

EREUT A
AR - AR TESA R o

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and
obligations on contract end gratuities payable to contract staff for services

rendered up to the end of the reporting period (also see Note 2.10).

DEFERRED REVENUE

This represents contract fees received in advance for which services have not

yet been rendered.

2015 2014

HEEATHRENBEHELNER Contract fees received in advance from
related parties 597,360 561,507

REMEPWENBHELER Contract fees received in advance from
other customers 13,584 13,873
g Total 610,944 575,380
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15 EERRR DEFERRED TAX
AT REFBRARARREEER TN EZMEK  Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial
HOURETEFANES) position and the movements during the year are as follows:
HEEER
TERBHEN Hits
HERHE ERMHER a5
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
and amortisation differences Total
2013F 4 A1 B &% Balance at 1 April 2013 13,688 (6,888) 6,800
2 E S R R Charged to statement of
comprehensive income 1,538 465 2,003
20143 A31 A& Balance at 31 March 2014 15,226 (6,423) 8,803
20144 A1 B &8 Balance at 1 April 2014 15,226 (6,423) 8,803
REERRRIER Charged to statement of
comprehensive income 319 2,039 2,358
20153 A 31 A&tk Balance at 31 March 2015 15,545 (4,384) 11,161
16 EEEEREX TRADING FUND CAPITAL
I RBTEMETIREEESHRE - This represents the Government'’s investment in the EMSTF.
17 REEF RETAINED EARNINGS
2015 2014
FHEEA Balance at beginning of year 2,307,675 2,307,675
FEAE2EE Total comprehensive income for the year 407,137 380,176
BEBIRE Proposed dividend (203,569) (380,176)
FREEH Balance at end of year 2,511,243 2,307,675
18 BESERER PROPOSED DIVIDEND

FBUTHE R B RIBFE AL E W a REHMEE  The proposed dividend to the Government is based on the total comprehensive

BREBRBBRZENFEE 2ETEEFIHA50%  income for the year and the dividend payout ratio of 50% (2014: 100%) stated

BiZRELLE (2014 : 100%) fEH © in the annual business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury.
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19 RaREFRRE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2015 2014
e MIRTTHERS Cash and bank balances 2,431 1,185
RITER Bank deposits 1,388,000 2,321,000
NEF Sub-total 1,390,431 2,322,185
R BARERA3ME A BRI TIE K Less: Bank deposits with original
maturity over three months - (2,200,000)
ReERERES Cash and cash equivalents 1,390,431 122,185
20 #*ifE COMMITMENTS
(a) BAREE Capital commitments

FE20159F3A31H » ETIREEES REENE

At 31 March 2015, the EMSTF had capital commitments, so far as not provided for

WMERPELBENEAEENT : in the financial statements, as follows:

2015 2014
Bt REL Authorised and contracted for 17,600 3,927
EHEMEREL Authorised but not yet contracted for 37,752 36,103
e Total 55,352 40,030

(b) EEHENEE

fE2015E3 A318 » RIETATEGH A L3 R i 289
BERYNARARINHREEMGHESRES

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease payments under the non-
cancellable operating leases for land and buildings were payable as follows:

2015 2014
a1 Not later than one year 4,393 6,280
FBiE1 F R HBIASF Later than one year but not later
than five years 509 3,569
W Total 4,902 9,849
21 XBAR CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

R201563A31H  ETIELBES I —IBTH
ETZaBFENA2,2328% T (2014 : 1,716
BEL) BHREBEERZBETIREBENESE
BRE FHEEFAHREIRLBEESHNBAEA
=+ o

At 31 March 2015, the EMSTF had provided a bank with counter-indemnity in
respect of performance bonds for HK$22.32 million (2014: HK$17.16 million)
issued by the bank in favour of certain clients who are related parties of the

EMSTF.
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22

23

HEZEALTHRS
BTERBRET SITREOZIIN  EAFE
NEMEATRTNEERS  TREMT -

(@ MBEEALRENREEEKERE T
TRERY - B TEREMN TR ER R
%o BUERBTRWALRRL451EETT
(2014 : 50.1418387T) - B2 FECAAM
I3 [EXERE] W -

(b) HEABEATRENRBRELE  HAM
7 RRITH R ER - EERBEREA9,110
B (2014 : 8,5308E L) - ELEEM
AKIE4 [EVERRAN] A o

(c) MEBABEBATBANETCEESRLEETLR
RE FEULEEMNAKARASTOEST
(2014 : 1,0008%&7T) -

I REA L REHAORTS - RAKAMABOEERE -
i i B EA TR RY - EEBRETA =M
FTAR - BIARBAANKERKRE - DRIEN
U [B] 2 ER R A H) R SR B o

MERRER

231 REBE
EIRLEESBHSBBRMNERT
B ORTHERRIIMNEESER o REHK
BEIRLEESMEE  MAERARERT
BRI EYERA o

2325 ERM
EERRESRMIANET —TTRERERT
BEMSIBSE - RZPBERNAE -

BETREELSNEERR - TEHAR
FEUIRTR ~ RITFEFRINER ST

FERIR N E B BRI E - EAABNEE
REREE - SEEREEERR - FEEH
FRAFNEBOFIRRT - ERIMNEES
7k - HAREEERRTER -

ETIRLSEERSNESREEMBRENR
SiEERRESNEREE
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other
material related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(a)

Services provided to related parties included electrical, mechanical and
electronic services; vehicle services; and project and consultancy services.
The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$5,451
million (2014: HK$5,014 million). This amount was included in turnover
under note 3.

Services received from related parties included maintenance,
accommodation, central administration and auditing. The total cost
incurred on these services amounted to HK$91.1 million (2014: HK$85.3

million). This amount was included in operating costs under note 4.

Acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out projects
and motor vehicles. The total cost of these assets amounted to HK$5.7
million (2014: HK$10.0 million).

Services provided to related parties were priced on a cost-plus basis. Services
received from related parties were charged at the rates payable by the general
public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost
recovery basis for services which were available only to related parties.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Investment policy

Surplus cash is invested in financial instruments including fixed deposits
and placement with the Exchange Fund. It is the EMSTF's policy that all
investments in financial instruments should be principal-protected.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The EMSTF's credit risk is primarily attributable to debtors, bank deposits
and placement with the Exchange Fund.

Debtors include mainly accrued interest and the associated credit risk
is minimal. To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with
licensed banks in Hong Kong. For the placement with the Exchange Fund,
the credit risk is considered to be low.

The maximum exposure of the financial assets of the EMSTF to credit risk
is equal to their carrying values.
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23 BERREERE (B
23 3RBES AR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

RBERRE - ERBEHENETESR
BERENETNER -

KETRZ2EESRAEARSREDNTK
EERBECER  BREAMBENRS
RELERRETIRE2EEINEEES
BRANASXNABEISHaBERENNESRH

23 4R RE K

R IR 46 135 L R 2 By T 3| SR L
% o FIRERTE— 55 AATEREER
RHSRBFIEER -

AFENERRESRTANATESED
SRNEZEHMRBHOER - ANBELR
LERSAARITFFIGREEMNES
BEWISAE LT BEERNATEREST
B o T - ARNE LTI REHEKAES
R BRI IEFBRERAERKE
TREEETHRINEHRE

RERENERBIESBRTANRKEASR
ESEmSNEEHMEBNER - HET
REEEESEARNEANBRS RENXE
e AAREFENIZSRMTABTIRTZE
SRIA -

23.5 & ¥ & b

E¥RBRESBTANAFERIARNRS
8 I R B B i R B O B

KETRZEESREEANEEER -
RESBRTABREDRIABTAANM

23.6 H th B 7 & B

EIREEECANREF—ABEN
IEESTFEREE (MEF10) WEH M A
YL FER - R201543 83180 @ BR
20144 20155 H) S EIZ AN / B 50MEEES

(2014 : 50EIER) MEMERTE -
STEERN REBZEN / B 1,5108%
7L (2014 : 1,050&8 %8 7T) °

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The EMSTF employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk
by forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working
capital of the EMSTF to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market
interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Since all of the EMSTF’s bank deposits bear interest at fixed rates, their
fair values will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they
are all stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not
affect their carrying amounts and the EMSTF's profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
EMSTF is not exposed to material cash flow interest rate risk because it has
no major financial instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The EMSTF does not have significant exposure to currency risk as
substantially all of its financial instruments are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Other financial risk

The EMSTF is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest
rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every
January (Note 10). It was estimated that, as at 31 March 2015, a 50 basis
point (2014: 50 basis point) increase/decrease in the interest rates for
2014 and 2015, with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the profit for the year and reserves by HK$15.1 million (2014:
HK$10.5 million).
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23 MBEBRER (&)

237 A¥E
EERRMSERXSNEBTANRTFERBRE
BEHERBNMSREEE - WREZE
TISME - QAR EREMEETEARS
HERANTRBBEEATE -

PrASRTAANERENFERSFHEES
RHESBINRHBARERA

24 EMRHERBE201553A31H

ILFERREHERT - HEAR
RETRERDEE

HEAMBHRRELZA  BEGFHAGER
MmEZIRER] ~ EAIRRE - ZFE] - LR
NERBREE2015F3A3 1B IEFERARER -
TR R B AN B 75 3R 3R oh BOBR AR » B P AT SE
AREETIREEESHNT:

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair values

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
guoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. In the absence of
such quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using present value
or other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position
at amounts equal to or not materially different from their fair values.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2015 and which have not been early
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the EMSTF:

EUT RS 2#%
BRI ESHE—ENK
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

ERPBHREEAESR [ERTA]

ERPBREENE165 [REFLEHZEA

201841718
1 January 2018

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

20181418
1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

WETREEESIRZFER] - FEANREE
EERARAHRBENEEENTEETHE - &
ERAIRL  AEERERAZEEE - LR
NEBIARGSHRETRECEESNP KR
REREATE -

WETREEESW|E EMSTF Report

The EMSTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the
period of initial adoption. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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